
KALIHI – PALAMA NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 15

c/o NEIGHBORHOOD COMMISSION  530 SOUTH KING STREET ROOM 406  HONOLULU, HAWAII, 96813
PHONE (808) 768-3710  FAX (808) 768-3711  INTERNET: http://www.honolulu.gov/nco

Oahu’s Neighborhood Board system – Established 1973

DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
WEDNESDAY, JULY 15, 2015
KALIHI UNION CHURCH

CALL TO ORDER – Chair Pro Tem Jonie Williams called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. Quorum was
established with 13 members present. Note: This 13-member Board requires seven (7) members to establish
quorum and to take official Board action.

Board Members Present – Theresa L. Cummings, Firmo Dayao, Joe Dumayag, Bob Erb, Cy Feng, Donald
Guerrero, Mark Kamahele, Ryan Mandado, Crystal Medeiros, Keoki Nunies, Jonan Sagadraca, Jonie Williams,
and Amanda Ybanez.

Board Members Absent – None.

Guests – Captain Keoki Ka’alele and Fire Fighter 1 Brandon Woods (Honolulu Fire Department); Lieutenant
Stephen Silva and Sergeant Jonathan Castro (Honolulu Police Department – District 1); Lieutenant Clyde Bueno
and Sergeant Raleigh Lopes (Honolulu Police Department – District 5); Oryn Nakamura (Board of Water Supply);
Director Sheri Kajiwara (Mayor Kirk Caldwell’s representative); Shirley Ann Templo (Councilmember Joey
Manahan’s Office); Senator Suzanne Chun Oakland; Representative Karl Rhoads; Carl Campagna
(Representative Romy Cachola’s Office); Nobu Nakamura (Kalihi Union Church); Christina Auyoung-Chong
(Neighborhood Board No. 16 Board Member); Aaron Landry (Neighborhood Board No. 11 Board Member); Kevin
AuYoung-Chong, Violet Kagawe, Clara Lam, Todd Hurst, Maria Becera, Julie Baron, Ailene Barranco and Ronald
Higa (Residents); David Amodo (Videographer) and Neighborhood Assistant Neil Baarde (Neighborhood
Commission Office).

ELECTION OF OFFICERS

 Chair – Williams nominated Mandado for Chair. Guerrero volunteered for Chair. Hearing no other
nominations, Chair Pro Tem Williams called for the vote.

o Guerrero: Guerrero did not receive enough votes for Chair, 3-10-0. (AYE: Cummings,
Guerrero, and Sagadraca.) (NAY: Dayao, Dumayag, Erb, Feng, Kamahele, Mandado, Medeiros,
Nunies, Williams, and Ybanez.)

o Mandado: Mandado received enough votes for Chair and was ELECTED to Chair, 11-2-0.
(AYE: Cummings, Dayao, Dumayag, Erb, Feng, Kamahele, Mandado, Medeiros, Nunies,
Williams, and Ybanez.) (NAY: Guerrero and Sagadraca).

Williams relinquished the gavel to Chair Mandado.

Dayao suggested that because the Board is voluntary, that the members volunteer for the positions of Officers
because the Board members should know if they have the time to properly fill the position.

 Vice Chair – Nunies nominated Feng for Vice Chair. Cummings nominated Guerrero for Vice Chair.
Hearing no other nominations, Chair Mandado called for the vote. Chair Mandado noted that there
can be two (2) Vice Chairs. Both Feng and Guerrero accepted to be Co-Vice Chairs.

 Secretary – Williams nominated Medeiros for Secretary. Hearing no other nominations, Chair
Mandado called for the vote. Medeiros was UNANIMOUSLY ELECTED to Secretary, 13-0-0. (AYE:
Cummings, Dayao, Dumayag, Erb, Feng, Guerrero, Kamahele, Mandado, Medeiros, Nunies, Sagadraca,
Williams, and Ybanez.)

 Treasurer – Williams nominated Cummings for Treasurer. Hearing no other nominations, Chair
Mandado called for the vote. Cummings was UNANIMOUSLY ELECTED to Treasurer, 13-0-0. (AYE:
Cummings, Dayao, Dumayag, Erb, Feng, Guerrero, Kamahele, Mandado, Medeiros, Nunies, Sagadraca,
Williams, and Ybanez.)



KALIHI/PALAMA NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 15 WEDNESDAY, JULY 15, 2015
DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 2 OF 7

PUBLIC SAFETY INPUT

Honolulu Fire Department (HFD) – Fire Fighter 1 Brandon Woods reported the following:
 June 2015 Statistics – There were 14 structure fires, 2 wildland fires, 9 rubbish fires, 9 vehicle fires, 96

medical emergencies, and 33 miscellaneous calls for service. There were no major or unusual incidents.
 Summer Home Safety Tips for Kids – With island keiki on summer break, this is an opportune time to

review the home surroundings for potentially dangerous situations. Take the time to childproof the home.
Check for situations that may cause electrical shock, accidental falls, and/or poisoning from unsecured
mediations, cleaning products, and/or household plants. Ensure that swimming pools are properly fenced
and gated. An alarm on the door from the house to the pool can help prevent unattended keiki from
drowning. Keep matches and lighters in a safe, secured place away from children.

Questions, comments, and concerns that followed:
1. Fire Inspections – Dayao raised a concern and asked if HFD does fire inspections of condominiums

regularly or after a fire occurs. Fire Fighter Woods responded that HFD does inspect condominiums at
least five (5) times a month and noted that the inspector also inspects schools and apartment buildings.
Captain Ka’alele commented that the Fire Inspection Branch inspects all buildings that are four (4) stories
and higher.

2. Private Property – Medeiros asked if HFD receives a call from someone on private property, would the
access be an issue or would HFD need to take an extra step with the owner(s). Captain Ka’alele
responded that there are already steps and policies for certain emergencies and noted that the Hawaii
Revised Statutes (HRS) usually helps with the owners.

Honolulu Police Department (HPD), District 1 – Lieutenant Stephen Silva reported the following:
 June 2015 Crime Statistics – There were 0 motor vehicle thefts, 1 burglary, 7 thefts, 4 unauthorized

entries into motor vehicles (UEMV), 2 assaults, 0 sex assault, 0 graffiti and 0 drug offenses for a total of
302 calls for service.

 Hurricane Safety Tips – Hurricane season began in June 2015 and will go through November 2015. To
prepare, HPD is asking the community members to prepare, by getting their preparedness/disaster kits
ready. Purchase several five (5) gallon buckets with a sealable lid. One (1) bucket should be marked “Go
Kit” and the other a “Stay Kit” on the outside of the bucket. Inside the “Go Kit” there should be items such
as passports, birth certificates, medicines, high energy non perishable food for at least seven (7) days,
warm clothing, sanitation items, portable radio, batteries and soap. In the “Stay Kit” there should be
photographs, non-essential valuables, and other items so it remains safe and dry. The items will remain
secured and for more information go to Hawaii State Civil Defense – disaster preparedness kit website.

Questions, comments, and concerns that followed:
1. District 1 Jurisdiction – Chair Mandado asked what areas District 1 covers. Lieutenant Silva responded

that District 1 is basically from Chinatown to Ala Moana.
2. River Street – Cummings raised a concern about the homeless on River Street and noted that some of

the homeless people's children are forming gangs and have been known to intimidate other people.
Cummings commented that some of them are damaging property and others have been seen starting
fights and asked if the Board can get information or a count of how many violations there are. Lieutenant
Silva responded that he is aware of the situation and noted HPD is doing what they can.

3. Neighborhood Security Watch (NSW) – Dayao asked how many NSW's there are in District 1. Lieutenant
Silva responded that he will follow up.

Honolulu Police Department (HPD) District 5 – Lieutenant Clyde Bueno reported the following:
 June 2015 Crime Statistics – There were 22 motor vehicle thefts, 17 burglaries, 97 thefts, and 31

unauthorized entries into motor vehicles (UEMV), for a total of 3,227 calls for service.

Questions, comments, and concerns that followed:
1. Population of District 5 – Dayao asked what the total population of District 5 is, so that the Board can

compare the statistics to District 1. Lieutenant Bueno responded that he will follow up and noted that the
numbers are higher in District 5 because they cover nine (9) beats, which covers by Red Hill and comes
towards Kalihi and to the Ocean.



KALIHI/PALAMA NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 15 WEDNESDAY, JULY 15, 2015
DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 3 OF 7

2. Kapalama Canal – Williams raised a concern about the Kapalama Canal system and noted that she has
been noticing many people come in and out of the tunnels and the water. Lieutenant Bueno responded
that some of the Canal are State and some are City jurisdiction but advised Williams to still call 911.

3. Pedestrians – Medeiros raised a concern about the pedestrian enforcement on Fort Street and asked if
HPD has ever thought of outreaching the enforcement to the Kalihi or Nimitz area. Lieutenant Bueno
responded that HPD does have other areas that they monitor and noted that they are placed in the heavy
population areas. Medeiros asked if HPD plans on having the crosswalks with the flags in other areas.
Lieutenant Bueno responded that it was only a trial period that the City conducted.

4. Homeless – Nunies raised a concern about homeless people making noise by his home windows and
asked if he can call 911. Lieutenant Bueno recommended calling 911 and asking HPD to take a look.

5. Noise – Sagadraca raised a concern about the community's noise tolerance and asked how HPD can
police the situation. Lieutenant Bueno responded that it is a tough situation because when HPD arrives,
the suspect is gone and commented that HPD is not equipped to cite people for muffler violations and
noted that he will follow up with a solid plan.

6. Detailed Statistics – Auyoung-Chong noted that she is a Neighborhood Board No. 16 member and raised
a concern about the statistics being different from her meeting and asked why their Neighborhood Board
cannot get more detailed information. Lieutenant Bueno responded that he does not know how the
statistics are done and noted that the full specific statistics can be found online on HPDs website.

7. No Parking Signs – A resident raised a concern about Akina Street going Mokuea Street and noted that
there are no parking signs but cars are still parked there especially on the curb. The resident commented
that it is an accident waiting to happen and asked if the City can put signs on the left side of the street
instead of the right side. Lieutenant Bueno responded that he will send his Sergeant to look at the area
and assess the sign situation.

Board of Water Supply (BWS) – Oryn Nakamura reported the following:
 Water Main Breaks – There were no waiter main breaks in the month of June 2015.
 Unthirsty Plant Sale – The BWS and Friends of Halawa Xeriscape Garden will be holding the annual

Halawa Xeriscape Garden open house and unthirsty plant sale on Saturday, August 1, 2015 from 9:00
a.m. to 3:00 p.m. The public is invited to this family-friendly event that features a wide variety of less-
thirsty and native plants at moderate prices, xeriscape workshops by garden experts, keiki activities,
educational booths, a cactus display, delicious food, free compost, and more. There is no charge for
admission. Proceeds from the event will help support educational programs and classes at the Halawa
Xeriscape Garden. For more information, visit www.boardofwatersupply.com or call the BWS
Communications Office at 748-5041. The BWS can also be contacted on Facebook and Twitter.

 Red Hill Fuel Tank Leak Update – On Tuesday, June 23, 2015, the Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) and State Department of Health (DOH) responded to a BWS request to have the Red Hill
Administrative Order on Consent (AOC) and Statement of Work (SOW) public comment period extended.
The EPA and DOH granted BWS’ request, extending the opportunity for receiving public comments to
Monday, July 20, 2015. To receive consideration, comments on the AOC may be submitted via postal
mail or email prior to the new deadline. More information on this issue is available at
www.boardofwatersupply.com.

MEETING DATE/TIME/LOCATION DETERMINATION – Chair Mandado asked if any Board Members wanted to
change the meeting date, time, or location of the meetings. Hearing no objections, the Board UNANIMOUSLY
ADOPTED the same meeting date, time, and location of the meetings, 13-0-0. (AYE: Cummings, Dayao,
Dumayag, Erb, Feng, Guerrero, Kamahele, Mandado, Medeiros, Nunies, Sagadraca, Williams, and Ybanez.)

BOARD RECESS RESCHEDULE – Chair Mandado asked if any Board Members wanted to change the regular
recess schedule, December 2015 and June 2016. Hearing no objections, the Board UNANIMOUSLY
ADOPTED the same regular recess schedule of December and June, 13-0-0. (AYE: Cummings, Dayao,
Dumayag, Erb, Feng, Guerrero, Kamahele, Mandado, Medeiros, Nunies, Sagadraca, Williams, and Ybanez.)

OLELO BROADCASTING OR NEWSLETTER – Chair Mandado asked if the Board would like to continue filming
on Olelo or if the Board would like to start a newsletter. Chair Mandado called for the vote. The Board voted to
continue their Olelo broadcast by UNANIMOUS CONSENT, 13-0-0. (AYE: Cummings, Dayao, Dumayag, Erb,
Feng, Guerrero, Kamahele, Mandado, Medeiros, Nunies, Sagadraca, Williams, and Ybanez.)



KALIHI/PALAMA NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 15 WEDNESDAY, JULY 15, 2015
DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 4 OF 7

ORAL TESTIMONY RULES – Chair Mandado asked if anyone on the Board wanted to change the Oral
Testimony Rules. Hearing no objections, the Board UNANIMOUSLY ADOPTED the same Oral Testimony rules,
13-0-0. (AYE: Cummings, Dayao, Dumayag, Erb, Feng, Guerrero, Kamahele, Mandado, Medeiros, Nunies,
Sagadraca, Williams, and Ybanez.)

REPORTS ON OTHER MEETINGS – Chair Mandado asked if any of the Board members attended other public
meetings. Guerrero noted that he attended the Oahu Metropolitan Planning Organization (OMPO) meeting and
reported that the Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC) is not easy to understand because there is much reading to
be done. OMPO CAC meets once a month to talk about the different OMPO issues, balanced transportation and
other issues. Guerrero noted that many Representatives attend, including Councilmember Manahan.
Councilmember Manahan congratulated the Board Members on being elected to the Board and commented that
the OMPO CAC is a planning organization with which the Federal Government funds advises where to spend the
money for different transportation projects. Councilmember Manahan encouraged the members to attend.
Cummings asked if Guerrero would be willing to be the Boards representative at the OMPO meetings. Guerrero
responded that it would be difficult to articulate to the Board but he will try.

ELECTED OFFICIALS

Mayor Kirk Caldwell’s Representative – Director Sheri Kajiwara reported the following:
 City News – Director Kajiwara announced that more than 300 people attended the meeting that discussed

Chinatowns future and noted that Representative Rhodes was the leader of the event.
 The Wildest Show in Town – The summer concert series, the Wildest Show in Town, is showing at the

Honolulu Zoo from Wednesday, June 3, 2015 to Wednesday, August 5, 2015.
 2015 Twilight Summer Concert Series – The Twilight summer concert series will be held every Thursday

through June and July 2015 at the Foster Botanical Garden from 5:45 p.m. to 6:30 p.m. Admission is free.
 Kamehameha Track – DPR noted that the Kalihi Valley Recreation Complex Supervisor called Al Chun

on Wednesday, June 3, 2015, and thanked him for his offer. However, the ball field is not large enough to
accommodate a track and still be used for ball playing. There is such a high demand for practice fields
island wide and in the West Honolulu District, that the department needs to preserve the usefulness of
each field for its intended use.

Questions, comments, and concerns that followed: Satellite City Hall – Erb raised a concern about the service at
the Dillingham Satellite City Hall. Erb noted that he saw an 80 year old woman standing in line for about two (2) to
three (3) hours and commented that it is very frustrating. Erb asked if the City can improve the service at all
Satellite City Halls. Director Kajiwara responded that it is a busy time due to the high demands and noted that
there are cameras installed to see which lines are long. Director Kajiwara noted that the City is trying to make a
kiosk or a number system for better service and commented that Director Kajiwara will keep the Board updated.
Medeiros asked if the City can put up signs that states what is needed in order to process the applications.
Director Kajiwara responded that there are huge signs posted and noted that there was also an online guide for
what is needed. Auyoung-Chong raised a concern and asked why the responsibility of State ID’s changed.
Director Kajiwara responded that the State Legislature passed a bill stating that the State ID’s should be only
available to the County’s. The document requirements are federally regulated and the State system is not the
same as the County’s but they tried to separate the lines but too many complaints were made.

Councilmember Joey Manahan – Shirley Templo distributed Councilmember Manahan's newsletter and
Councilmember Manahan reported the following:

 State ID’s and Driver’s Licenses – Councilmember Manahan suggested using a streamline application
process, where someone would only have to fill out one (1) application but Council has to fix the
application process and address the issues with the Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS).

 Bill 6 – The Sit/Lie bill was not everyone’s favorite but the housing issue needs to be addressed. The Hilo
Hattie proposal was going to have a shuttle to a one (1) stop facility, to the Emergency Room, or to the
closest hospital.

 City Budget – The request for a crosswalk for Richard Lane has been approved. The request for
pedestrian lanes and to fix the crosswalks from Middle Street to King Street.

 Illegal Dumping – Councilmember Manahan noted that there has been illegal dumping by Wilcox Lane
and Patrick Lane. Councilmember Manahan noted that he is planning on starting a NSW to alleviate the
issues. Councilmember Manahan noted that he is happy to have so many enthusiastic people a part of
the community.



KALIHI/PALAMA NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 15 WEDNESDAY, JULY 15, 2015
DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 5 OF 7

 Kapalama Canal – Money has been put in the budget for the canals and Councilmember Manahan noted
that he will work with the City to install a fence by Houghtailing Street.

STATE ELECTED OFFICIALS

Governor David Ige’s Representative – No representative was present; no report was available.

Senator Donna Mercado Kim – Chair Mandado read a memo from Senator Donna Mercado Kim:
 Bills – Tuesday, July 14, 2015 was the last day for Governor Ige to sign bills which were passed by the

Legislature this past session. The bills included the extended rail tax and the establishment of medical
marijuana dispensaries. In total, Governor Ige vetoed eight (8) bills for UH grad students to create a
collective bargaining unit. The Legislature will not be holding a special session to override any of the bills
that Governor Ige has vetoed.

 Summer Community Bulletin – Senator Kim noted that her Summer Community Bulletin will be sent to
homes by the end of the week. In it are the results of the Spring 2015 survey, legislative highlights, and
various community events.

Senator Suzanne Chun Oakland – No representative was present. A report was made available.

Senator Glenn Wakai – No representative was present; no report was provided.

Representative Karl Rhoads – Representative Rhoads reported the following:
 Hawaiian Electric Company (HECO) – Received a complaint regarding HECO no giving prior notice

before putting up sawhorses blocking parking near the corner of Home Rule Street and Kalihi Street back
in January 2015. Contacted HECO and they said prior to notice was not possible due to emergency repair
work on a faulty piece of pole-mounted equipment. HECO said they will try their best to provide prior
notice when possible in the future.

 Laundry Machines – Received a complaint regarding the homeless using the laundry machines at Kukui
Gardens. The issue has been forwarded to Kukui Gardens management.

 Suspected Gambling – Received a complaint regarding suspected gambling activity at 1820 Kalani
Street. The issue has been forwarded to the Narc/Vice division of HPD.

 Homeless – Received a complaint regarding the homeless living under the bridge next to 1527 Kapalama
Avenue. The issue has been forwarded to the Department of Facility Maintenance (DFM). Another
complaint was received regarding the homeless doing drugs along Kokea Street between North King
Street and Vineyard Boulevard. The issue has been forwarded to HPD.

 Speeding – Received a complaint regarding scattered rubbish along the unimproved sidewalk located
along the canal side of Kokea Street between Halona Street and 1460 Kokea Street. The issue has been
forwarded to the City.

 Resurfacing – Received a complaint regarding the recent resurfacing of Makalapua Place and nearby
residents said the resurfacing ended 25 feet short of the end of Makalapua Place. A request has been
sent to the Department of Transportation Services (DTS) to have the rest of Makalapua Place resurfaced.

Questions, comments, and concerns that followed:
1. Puuhale Elementary – Medeiros raised a concern about cars speeding near the school and asked if the

signs can be more visible to alleviate the cars speeding. Representative Rhoads responded that he
submitted a request and noted he will follow up.

2. Homeless and Gang Violence – Dayao asked how much money has the State spent helping alleviate the
issues. Representative Rhoads responded that the short answer is difficult to add up because of all of
the different parts but noted he will follow up.

3. Homelessness – Erb raised a concern about the abuse of the homeless in Hawaii and noted that it seems
as if the laws are bent and skewed. The State needs to do the right thing because it seems as if the
State does not care for the homeless. Representative Rhoads responded that he has found pretty
profound news all over the world and noted that there is a little less than 5,000 homeless on Oahu. The
Federal Government is trying to alleviate the issue but some homeless people do not want to be helped.



KALIHI/PALAMA NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 15 WEDNESDAY, JULY 15, 2015
DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 6 OF 7

Representative Romy Cachola – Carl Campangna reported the following:
 Unfunded Liability – Campangna noted that Representative Cachola will continue to save money for the

unfunded liability.
 33 rd Annual Healthfair – Campangna announced that the 33rd annual health fair will be on Sunday,

August 22, 2015 and will be from 1:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m.

Honolulu Rail Transit Project (HRTP) – Pat Lee reported the following:
 Most Congested City – Honolulu remaining one of the most congested cities in America. In a study

released earlier this year, Honolulu’s traffic congestion ranked third-worst in the nation, behind Los
Angeles and San Francisco. The study was based on information from navigational devices and ranks
200 markets across the world. Using commuter information gleaned from car and truck GPS systems and
smart phone apps, data was studied for various times of the day to determine when people are stuck in
traffic and for how long. In the category Commuter Street Index, Honolulu is ranked No. 1. The CSI
measures congestion in both directions during both the morning and evening rush hours.

 Traffic Congestion – Traffic congestion grows as the population grows. Oahu’s population is forecast to
continue to increase and the number of vehicles within the 20-mile corridor served by rail from East
Kapolei to urban Honolulu.

 Alternatives – Once completed, rail will offer commuters an alternative to driving in traffic and reduce the
rate of future traffic congestion by eliminating as much as 40,000 daily vehicle trips from the congested
roads and highways.

 Rail Jobs – The number of rail jobs in the first quarter of the year grew to 1,427. The quarterly job count
includes current contractors Kiewit, Ansaldo Honolulu JV, Nan, various architectural firms working for the
project along with the Honolulu Authority for Rapid Transportation (HART) staff. Sixty-one percent of
those jobs are local hires with that number expected to grow as the rail project moves forward and more
construction contracts are awarded.

 Latest Construction Highlights – The highlights include 237 foundation shafts, 164 columns, 2,783
segments case, 117 spans; over three (3) miles of guideway are completed and the rail guideway is now
proceeding into the Waipahu area.

 Contacts – For traffic updates, meeting notices and more information please visit
www.honolulutransit.org, call the project hotline at 566-2299 or email questions at
infor@honolulutransit.org.

Questions, comments, and concerns that followed:
1. Small Businesses – Cummings raised a concern about the issues with the small businesses in Pearl City

and noted that she was not aware of all the entrances changed. Cummings asked for information or
procedures about the small businesses and noted something should be done before Rail comes to Kalihi.
Lee responded that Rail is learning from the past and businesses were part of an outreach program and
noted that he will continue to talk to the owners. On the website there are a lot of construction information
on current and upcoming work.

2. Dillingham Area – Nunies raised a concern and asked what Rail is currently doing in the Dillingham area.
Lee responded that the Dilllingham area will not be a part of the Rail and noted that the trains will run in
the center area but the Makai side will be widened. Nunies asked if there was a master plan for the
properties along the rail. Lee responded that a few residences were required but most properties have
already been acquired. Guerrero noted that some of the restaurants have been closed due to
construction and noted that some businesses are fragile.

RESIDENTS/COMMUNITY CONCERNS – Graffiti – Auyoung-Chong raised a concern about the graffiti issues
that occur in the Kalihi area and noted that Farrington High School is in both districts and asked if the Kalihi
Palama Neighborhood Board would like to work together to alleviate the graffiti in the Kalihi area. Guerrero noted
that there are rules and regulations in regards to graffiti. Councilmember Manahan noted that $250,000 has been
requested for Adult Friends for Youth (AFY) and commented that he needs some help for the release of the
funds. Councilmember Manahan noted that there are rules and regulations for graffiti, but the suspects need to be
caught in the act. Cummings suggested talking to the gang violence task force. Auyoung-Chong noted that she
has been working with the students at Farrington High School and Councilmember Manahan noted he has been
working with Farrington High School’s principle.



KALIHI/PALAMA NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 15 WEDNESDAY, JULY 15, 2015
DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 7 OF 7

BOARD BUSINESS

APPROVAL OF THE MAY 20, 2015 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES – Hearing no objections, the Board
UNANIMOUSLY ADOPTED the May 20, 2015 regular meeting minutes, 13-0-0. (AYE: Cummings, Dayao,
Dumayag, Erb, Feng, Guerrero, Kamahele, Mandado, Medeiros, Nunies, Sagadraca, Williams, and Ybanez.)

OTHER REPORTS

Treasurer’s Report – Treasurer Cummings reported that $15.85 was spent in June 2015, leaving a remaining
balance of $168.33. The report was filed.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

 Next Meeting – The next Kalihi Palama Neighborhood Board No. 15 regular meeting will be on
Wednesday, August 19, 2015, 7:00 p.m., at the Kalihi Union Church, 2214 North King Street.

ADJOURNMENT – The meeting adjourned at 7:51 p.m.

Submitted by: Neil Baarde, Neighborhood Assistant
Reviewed by: Nola J. Frank, Neighborhood Assistant
Reviewed and Finalized by: Chair Ryan Mandado


